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Some of the statements contained herein are forward looking statements about Scottish Power UK plc and its subsidiaries, and Iberdrola S.A.’s
strategic plans. Although Scottish Power UK plc and Iberdrola S.A. believe that the expectations reflected in such statements are reasonable, the
statements are not guarantees as to future performance and undue reliance should not be placed on them.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
The directors present an overview of Scottish Power UK plc’s structure, 2014 performance, strategic objectives and plans.

SCOTTISH POWER UK PLC GROUP
STRATEGIC OUTLOOK AND 2014 PERFORMANCE
Scottish Power UK plc (“the company”), registered company number SC117120, principally acts as the holding company of the Scottish Power UK plc
group (“the group”), whose activities comprise the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity, energy management and the supply of
electricity and gas principally in the United Kingdom (“UK”). The three principal segments operated by the group during the year were Energy Networks,
Energy Wholesale and Retail and Renewables. During the year the European offshore wind activities of Iberdrola S.A. were acquired by the group.
Further information on the acquisition is available in the Renewables section below.
The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Iberdrola S.A. (“Iberdrola”), one of the world’s largest utility companies. Scottish Power Limited is the UK
holding company of the Scottish Power Limited group (“ScottishPower”) of which the company is a member.
The group’s strategic objectives include:
• optimisation of both existing assets and future investments with the aim of maximising value;
• continuing to be a UK leader in renewable energy solutions;
• listening to customers and making improvements to service levels;
• helping customers become more energy efficient and find the best deal for them; and
• being socially aware and engaged in the community.
The environment within which the group operates remains challenging, which makes future investment appraisal and strategic decisions within the
group’s businesses complex. The market for the supply and acquisition of gas and electricity was referred to the Competition and Markets Authority
(“CMA”) on 26 June 2014; that investigation, which is due to conclude at the end of 2015, is considering the functioning of the market in depth. The
CMA has wide ranging powers to impose remedies if it finds adverse effects on competition. Following the UK general election, there is also the
possibility of legislation of the functioning of the energy market.
Other major industry initiatives are nearing completion, with the first capacity market auction undertaken in December 2014 and the first auction for
Contracts for Difference (“CfD”) for low carbon energy undertaken in February 2015. Developments over time in the capacity market and budget
allocation for low carbon energy will impact the future prospects for the group’s businesses in these areas. The distribution price control (“RIIO-ED1”)
process has now completed (with the exception of any appeals) and the Energy Networks business will operate from April 2015 in the light of the
outcome.
The table below provides key financial information relating to the group’s performance during the year. Further detail is provided in the individual
segmental sections of the Strategic Report.
Revenue*

Financial key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
Scottish Power UK plc group

2014
£m

2013
Restated***
£m

7,107.4

8,228.0

Profit from operations*

Capital investment**

2014
£m

2013
Restated***
£m

2014
£m

2013
Restated***
£m

765.0

704.9

1,337.9

1,250.4

* The group’s total revenue and profit from operations as presented on page 20.
** The group’s total capital investment as presented in Note 6(d) on page 41.
*** Comparative figures have been restated (see Note 2).

In the financial period revenues have decreased by £1,121 million, primarily as a result of reduced sales within the Energy Wholesale and Retail segment
which are largely offset by lower procurement costs. Profit from operations has increased by £60 million, with improved performance across Energy
Networks and Energy Wholesale and Retail.
The group’s continued commitment to the UK energy market is reflected by a capital spend of over £1.3 billion in 2014 and over £1.2 billion in 2013.
This represents 46% (2013 51%) of Iberdrola’s total net capital spend. Capital investment is focussed on the Energy Networks and Renewables
businesses. The planned 2015 capital investment spend is in line with 2014.

ENERGY NETWORKS
SEGMENT DESCRIPTION AND OUTLOOK
Energy Networks owns three regulated electricity network businesses in the UK. These businesses are “asset-owner companies” holding the regulated
assets and Electricity Distribution and Transmission Licences of ScottishPower and are regulated monopolies. They own and operate the network of
cables and power lines transporting electricity to around 3.5 million connected customers in the South of Scotland, Cheshire, Merseyside, North
Shropshire and North Wales.
In addition, a further unregulated business, SP Power Systems Limited (“Power Systems”), provides asset management expertise and conducts the dayto-day operation of the networks.
The asset-owner companies act as an integrated business unit to concentrate expertise on regulatory and investment strategy and Power Systems
implements work programmes commissioned by and agreed with the asset-owner businesses. Strict commercial disciplines are applied at the assetowner service provider interface with Power Systems operating as a contractor to the distribution and transmission businesses.
One of the regulated businesses, SP Transmission plc (“SPT”) is a transmission network owner. The electricity transmission network consists of the
high-voltage electricity wires that convey electricity from power stations to distribution system entry points or, in certain cases, direct to end-users’
premises via a national network of high-voltage grids.
The other two regulated businesses are Distribution Network Operators (“DNO”); SP Distribution plc (“SPD”) and SP Manweb plc (“SPM”). The electricity
distribution networks are regional grids that transport electricity at a lower voltage from the national grids to industrial, commercial and domestic users.
Scottish Power UK plc Annual Report and Accounts 2014
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued
ENERGY NETWORKS continued
SEGMENT DESCRIPTION AND OUTLOOK continued
All three regulated businesses are natural monopolies and are governed by The Office of Gas and Electricity Markets (“Ofgem”) via regulatory price
controls. The primary objective of the regulation of the electricity networks is the protection of customer’s interests while ensuring that demand can be
met and companies are able to finance their activities. Price controls are the method by which the amount of allowed revenue is set for network
companies over the period of the price control. Price control processes are designed to cover each company’s efficient costs and allow them to earn a
reasonable return, provided they behave efficiently, deliver value for customers and meet Ofgem targets.
The transmission and distribution network companies face a considerable challenge over the next decade to secure the significant investment required
to maintain reliable and secure networks. To ensure that this investment is delivered at a fair price for customers, Ofgem have introduced a new RIIO
framework (Revenue = Incentives + Innovation + Outputs). It is a performance based model, lasting eight years, that places a much greater emphasis
on network companies playing a full role in developing a sustainable energy sector and delivering services that provide value for money for customers.
A key feature is agreement on the set of outputs that companies will be expected to deliver as part of the framework and the provision of incentives to
reduce network costs for both current and future customers. The method for setting the controls has changed with a “fast-track” process designed to
conclude the negotiation in advance for companies who submit business plans that are acceptable to Ofgem.
As part of the transmission price control (“RIIO-T1”), SPT was fast-tracked and its price control was finalised in April 2012, a full year ahead of the price
control coming into effect in April 2013. The inaugural SP Transmission Annual Performance Report was published for stakeholders in October 2014,
covering the 2013/14 regulatory year. The business has made a strong start to the delivery of the vast RIIO-T1 investment programme. Highlights for
the year include: investing £23 million ahead of plan on asset renewal, connecting 400 megawatts (“MW”) of renewable generation and securing funding
of over £7 million under the Network Innovation Competition.
RIIO-ED1 will operate from April 2015 to March 2023. SPD and SPM’s revised Business Plans were submitted in March 2014 and Ofgem published their
final determination in late November 2014. Overall, the electricity distribution licenses have received a challenging outcome compared with existing
regulatory arrangements, with a reduction in shareholder allowed returns, whilst setting further efficiency challenges from benchmarking, smart
metering and reduced allowances for commodities such as copper. On 3 February 2015 Ofgem published the statutory notice to enact the RII0-ED1
price controls in the licences of the electricity distribution companies with effect from 1 April 2015. Energy Networks has accepted the modifications to
SPM’s and SPD’s licences. On 3 March 2015, two appeals, the results of which may affect the business, were lodged with the CMA by third parties; the
outcome of these appeals is unlikely to be known until late autumn 2015.
In line with the group’s strategic objectives, and its regulatory obligations, Energy Networks is maintaining its significant investment in the UK energy
network. Over the last ten years, the group has invested around £6 billion in its transmission and distribution network, and during the next ten years,
the group plans to invest a further £7 billion to modernise and improve service to customers.
This drive to modernise and improve service to customers, together with the age profile of Energy Network’s employees and those of its contactors,
means that almost 4,000 people will need to be recruited over the next ten years to support its activities and to replace retirees. Energy Networks have
carried out a review of its resourcing strategy and have already started on its plan to bridge the industry skills gap by investing in comprehensive
training and development programmes. These training programmes include graduate trainees, engineering apprentices, craft apprentices and adult
craft trainees. Energy Networks are also providing training to its craftspeople to widen their skills so that they can carry out a range of operational
duties. During 2014 Energy Networks recruited 15 graduates, 10 trainee craftspersons and 48 craft apprentices.

2014 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Financial key performance indicators

Energy Networks

Revenue*

Profit from operations**

Capital investment***

2014
£m

2013
£m

2014
£m

2013
£m

2014
£m

2013
£m

1,113.5

1,042.7

617.7

591.4

792.3

699.4

* Segment total revenue as presented in Note 6(b) on page 38.
** Segment profit from operations as presented in Note 6(c) on page 39.
*** Segment capital investment as presented in Note 6(d) on page 41.

Following an increase in the asset base driven by investments, Energy Networks revenue increased by £71 million to £1,114 million in 2014. This was
driven by increased allowable transmission revenues in SPT under RIIO-T1 and increased allowable distribution revenues, primarily from SPM, under
Distribution Price Control Review 51 (“DPCR5”). Allowable revenues in SPD decreased in 2014 under DPCR5.
Profit from operations increased by £26 million to £618 million in 2014, with increases in both SPT and SPM mainly due to higher allowable revenues
mentioned above.
Energy Networks capital investment increased by £93 million to £792 million in 2014, with increased spend across all three of the regulated businesses.
Projects contributing to the increase include the development of a new subsea High-Voltage Direct Current (“HVDC”) 400km cable, part of a brand new
interconnector running between Scotland and Wales. SPT is playing a major role in the upgrade of the UK electricity grid, which is running close to
maximum capacity and has significant investment plans under RIIO-T1 to upgrade the transmission network. SPM has significantly increased its capital
investment programme this year, particularly on its 132 kilovolt (“kV”) network. Projects include the refurbishment of key electrical substations where
existing assets have served the local communities for over 50 years as well as continued refurbishment of overhead lines and replacement of strategic
underground cables. Other investment is associated with the connection of renewable generation and the bulk transfer of energy around the
transmission system. These works are a combination of the construction of new equipment to create new capacity and upgrading of equipment to
maximise the capacity available from the existing network.

1

Distribution Price Control Review 5 – the price control currently applicable to electricity DNO’s, which runs from 1 April 2010 until 31 March 2015.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued
ENERGY NETWORKS continued
2014 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE continued
The three regulated businesses within Energy Networks are required to prepare regulatory accounts for the years ending 31 March. Reporting of key
performance indicators is aligned to the regulatory year end. Consequently, the latest available data for the last regulatory year for Energy Networks has
been disclosed in the tables below, with the exception of distributed energy that is reported for the years ending 31 December.
Non-financial key performance indicators
Distributed energy (GWh)*
- SPD
- SPM
Customer interruptions
- SPD
- SPM
Customer minutes lost
- SPD
- SPM
Customer satisfaction
- SPD
- SPM
Transmission operational performance
Annual number of loss of supply incentivised incidents

Notes

2014

2013

18,541
15,676

19,206
16,113

53.1
40.9

51.6
34.1

43.8
44.8

45.7
42.8

8.3
8.4

7.8
7.9

7

n/a

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

* Gigawatt hours (”GWh”)
(a) Customer interruptions are reported as the number of customers, per 100 customers, that are affected during the year by power cuts that last three minutes or more. The
2013/14 Ofgem targets for customer interruptions were 60.1 for SPD and 45.1 for SPM. Both licenced entities outperformed the Ofgem target.
(b) Customer minutes lost is reported as the average number of minutes that a customer is without power during a year due to power cuts that last for three minutes or more.
The 2013/14 Ofgem targets for customer minutes were 59.5 for SPD and 59.6 for SPM. Both licenced entities outperformed the Ofgem target.
(c) This measure consists of three components: a customer satisfaction survey, complaints metric and stakeholder engagement. The rating is out of ten. Attached to the measure
are financial rewards and penalties related to DNO performance. The 2013/14 Ofgem target for the customer satisfaction measure was 8.3 for both SPD and SPM. Both licenced
entities are broadly in line with the Ofgem target.
(d) A new incentivised mechanism was introduced in 2013/14 to report energy not supplied, and associated incidents. The definition of ‘incentivised incidents’ is inconsistent
with historical reporting, therefore no comparison with 2013 reported figures can be made. Incentivised incidents are incidents where the loss of supply is longer than three minutes.

Energy Networks is formally committed to maintaining high performance during extreme weather events. Consequently, during the course of the year
over £36 million was invested to refurbish or rebuild the 11kV overhead line network. In addition £15 million was invested in tree cutting activities. Both
of these investments have contributed significantly to improving performance of distribution assets during storms.
The long-term safety and reliability of ScottishPower’s electricity distribution networks and their impact on customers are key business priorities. Whilst
working to improve reliability and restoration, the networks are designed and operated in a way that ensures the safety of the public and employees
with minimal number and duration of supply interruptions.

ENERGY WHOLESALE AND RETAIL
SEGMENT DESCRIPTION AND OUTLOOK
Given the complexity of the Energy Wholesale and Retail segment, and in the interests of transparency, analysis of the key business functions has been
provided below.

ENERGY WHOLESALE
Generation owns and operates more than 4,800 MW of generating capacity comprising coal, gas and hydroelectric generation assets, giving the
business a flexible and balanced portfolio.
Energy management is predominantly responsible for:
• the purchase of external supplies of coal, gas and emissions certificates for the generation of electricity;
• the purchase of external supplies of electricity and gas for onward sale to customers;
• the optimisation of gas storage; and
• the sale of electricity to market participants in the UK.
Energy Wholesale’s operations are focused on managing the complex market conditions in relation to the operation of the group’s generation asset
base (except for those technologies managed by Renewables) and managing the group’s exposure to the UK wholesale electricity and gas markets.
The regulatory environment within which Energy Wholesale operates continues to undergo significant change, with the first Capacity Market auction
held in December 2014. The Capacity Market is designed to provide financial incentives to ensure that the UK has enough reliable electricity capacity to
meet demand. The Government successfully procured 49.3 gigawatts (“GW”) of capacity at £19.40 per kilowatt (“kW”) (2012 prices) for the year October
2018 to September 2019 via the first auction, of which the group secured agreements for its four operational gas-fired power stations and its hydro
operations in Scotland. In total the group secured agreements for 2.3GW of de-rated2 generation capacity.
The decision was taken not to progress Longannet coal-fired power station in this Capacity Market auction as market conditions, particularly
disproportionate transmission charges to the station, meant that the company could not justify entering the plant in to a process which will not come
into force for four years and which will then offer twelve months of certainty only. Further, following 18 months of negotiations to secure a deal for
Longannet Power Station, in March 2015, National Grid announced the results of its competitive tender exercise for a constraint management service in
Scotland. Unfortunately the plant was not awarded the contract. As a result, over the coming weeks the company will be reviewing its options as to the
future commercial viability of the power station, but no decision has been taken at this point.
Capacity Market auctions will be an important factor in making future strategic and long term investment decisions, including building new plant,
as well as optimising the existing portfolio.
2

The de-rated capacity margin is defined as the expected excess of available generation capacity over demand. Available generation capacity is the part of the installed
capacity that is expected to be accessible in reasonable operational timelines, it is not decommissioned or offline due to maintenance or forced outage.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued
ENERGY WHOLESALE AND RETAIL continued
SEGMENT DESCRIPTION AND OUTLOOK continued
ENERGY WHOLESALE continued
The Government also introduced the Supplementary Balancing Reserve (”SBR”) in 2014. SBR involves National Grid contracting with plant to be held in reserve
outside of the market, ready to respond in the event that it is needed in order to increase the security of UK electricity supply. Rye House Combined Cycle Gas
Turbine (“CCGT”) station secured an SBR contract for the period November 2014 to September 2015 to provide up to 675 MW of electricity to National Grid.
The Carbon Price Support Rate tax (“Carbon tax”), which is a tax levied by the UK Government on the fossil fuels used to generate electricity, continues
to have a significant impact on the UK’s coal-fired power stations, therefore policy developments continue to be monitored.

ENERGY RETAIL
Energy Retail is responsible for the supply of electricity and gas to 5.5 million domestic and business customers throughout Great Britain, as well as
providing customer services such as customer registration, billing and receipting processes and handling enquiries in respect of these services. Energy
Retail is also responsible for the associated metering activity and managing the group’s Energy Services activities.
Energy Retail remains committed to delivering the best service possible and treating our customers fairly. The business has a long track record of
delivering high standards of service to our customers. To further improve customer service, the group has invested over £200 million in a new
customer relationship management (”CRM”) system, which will deliver a tailored approach to individual customers and enable customers to take control
of their energy bill. All customer accounts have now been successfully migrated to the new system and the business and customers are already seeing
some of the system benefits being delivered, such as the ‘industry first’ on-line direct debit management service, which allows customers to control the
level of their direct debit payment via the interactive website.
The process of moving to the new system has been challenging and has resulted in service problems for some customers. Energy Retail is determined
to put this right, and is continuing to correct problems, pay appropriate compensation and ensure no customer is left financially disadvantaged.
In November 2014, Ofgem announced an investigation into Energy Retail’s treatment of customers and at the same time, Energy Retail voluntarily set
itself challenging improvement targets for the following months. Two of the targets were successfully delivered. Overdue bills are now less than 30,000
and calls are being answered faster, achieving an average of less than two minutes by the end of January 2015.
In relation to the target of having zero ombudsman remedies over 28 days, 2,575 cases were cleared during November 2014 and, as at 1 December
2014, the Ombudsman confirmed that the target of zero had been achieved. However, subsequently on 4 March 2015, it was identified that 30 cases
had been closed incorrectly. Apologies were made to customers for these errors, which were immediately fixed on discovery. In line with the original
voluntary commitment, and with the agreement of Ofgem, Energy Retail stopped outbound selling from 4 March until 15 March 2015.
The voluntary commitments are now complete but Energy Retail will continue to report service performance on its website on an ongoing basis and continue to
work constructively with Ofgem to support the ongoing investigation. Energy Retail is fully committed to delivering continued service improvements, to return
to the high service standards long associated with ScottishPower and to ensuring that customers realise the very real benefits of the IT system investment.
During 2014 Energy Retail has played an active role in an industry-wide campaign “My Energy Credit”, to reunite customers with final credit balances
which they have left unclaimed after leaving their energy supplier. As part of this initiative, ten common standards have been agreed across the large
UK supply businesses and a joint website established to give customers greater information on how to proceed with a refund request. Going forward
Energy Retail will utilise unreturned domestic customer credits to provide help to its vulnerable customers, via a new hardship fund established with an
initial donation of £5.2 million.
Energy Retail supports vulnerable customers with their energy bills through the Warm Home Discount Scheme (“WHD”) spending over £32 million
in 2014 providing assistance to over 218,000 customers.
As well as delivering the WHD, ScottishPower supports vulnerable customers through:
• The ScottishPower Energy People Trust, which funds registered charities that help people whose lives are affected by fuel poverty. During 2014
the ScottishPower Energy People Trust awarded £0.4 million to 13 projects to assist 12,173 people in 5,009 households through community projects
designed to reduce fuel poverty. Since the Trust was formed in November 2005 it has awarded £12.6 million to 263 projects helping 1.6 million
people in 1.3 million households, and will continue to provide such support;
• A partnership with The Money Advice Trust (known as National Debtline) to proactively assist customers struggling to pay their energy debt. The
Trust has been able to support ScottishPower in its objective by engaging with front line staff and delivering bespoke debt awareness training that
allows ScottishPower staff to identify when it is appropriate to refer a customer to the free debt advice sector; and
• Improving the service Energy Retail provides to some of the more vulnerable customers (identified as having special needs) by proactively
identifying contacts from these vulnerable customers and directing their calls to agents who are specially trained in handling sensitive issues.
The delivery of energy efficiency measures continues to be an important objective of Energy Retail and 2014 was the second year of delivery of the
Government’s Energy Company Obligation (“ECO”). The ECO scheme focuses on reducing heating costs for the most vulnerable customers, and also
aims to improve the energy efficiency of properties. The business has made strong progress towards this obligation and had, by the end of the period,
delivered sufficient volumes of measures to customers, to meet all of its March 2015 ECO targets.
Customer service will be further enhanced by the roll-out of smart meters to retail customers, and Energy Retail continues to play an active role as a
participant in industry bodies in advance of the mass rollout activity which is expected to commence during 2016. A significant investment in IT systems
to ensure the Retail business meets its mandatory obligations began in 2014, and will continue through 2015.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued
ENERGY WHOLESALE AND RETAIL continued
2014 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE continued
Non-financial key performance indicators continued
Volume supplied (GWh)
Complaints handing
Customers (millions)
- Electricity
- Gas

2014

2013
Restated*

50,968
5th

58,477
2nd

3,354
2,194
5,548

3,426
2,209
5,635

Notes

(e)
(f)

*

Customer numbers have been restated in accordance with the guidance issued by Ofgem for the presentation of customer numbers within the Consolidated Segmental
Statements.
(a) Plant output is a reflection of the electricity generated by the business measured in GWh.
(b) CHP is defined as Combined Heat and Power plants.
(c) Generating capacity is the maximum output per second that generating equipment can supply to system load, adjusted for ambient conditions.
(d) Plant availability is the percentage of the year that the plant is available for use.
(e) Based on the Citizens Advice Complaints Handling Report. Ranking reflects ScottishPower’s position relative to other ‘Big 6’ Energy Companies and is based on a balanced
scorecard considering Citizen’s Advice, Consumer Futures and Energy Ombudsman referrals and complaints.
(f) Customer numbers are based on the average number of Meter Point Administration Numbers for electricity customers and Meter Point Reference Numbers for gas
customers during the year to 31 December.

The movement in complaints handling is linked to the migration of customers to Energy Retail’s new CRM system (as outlined above).

RENEWABLES
SEGMENT DESCRIPTION AND OUTLOOK
Renewables is responsible for the origination, development, construction and operation of renewable energy generation plants, predominantly onshore
wind, with a large and growing presence in offshore wind, and the exploration of emerging renewable technologies.
Renewables has a successful track record as a developer of onshore wind farms with a conversion rate of MW from planning to consent of over 90% and
is the leading operator of onshore wind farms in the UK with an installed capacity of 1,432 MW at 31 December 2014.
Renewables is a leading developer of offshore wind, with its 389 MW West of Duddon Sands project recently constructed and commencing operations
in the East Irish Sea as part of a 50/50 joint arrangement with DONG Energy West of Duddon Sands (UK) Limited and a further 7,200 MW of development
rights in the East Anglia Zone as part of an arrangement with Vattenfall Wind Power Ltd. The first project in the East Anglia zone received planning
consent in June 2014.
At 31 December 2014, the group had a 50% interest in the share capital of East Anglia One Limited. Subsequent to the year end, on 24 March 2015, East Anglia
One Limited became a wholly owned subsidiary of the group when the group acquired the remaining 50% of the share capital of East Anglia One Limited from
Vattenfall Wind Power Limited.
As Iberdrola’s European offshore activities are operated from the UK, the ownership and control of the companies responsible for offshore development
in France and Germany were transferred to the group during 2014. Renewables is progressing with the construction of the 350 MW Wikinger3 wind farm,
located off the coast of Germany in the Baltic Sea. Wikinger is expected to be operational by the end of 2017. Further information is included in Note 36.
In 2014, Renewables has continued to actively engage in the Government Electricity Market Reform (“EMR”) process and in particular development of the terms
of the new Contract for Difference (“CfD”) mechanism and the supporting legislation. The CfD will replace the Renewable Obligation (“RO”) as the main support
mechanism for large scale renewable electricity generation from 1 April 2017, although there will be a period of parallel running. Following the end of a
competitive auction process Renewables was successful in being allocated a CfD for 714 MW relating to the East Anglia One offshore project. The CfD agreements
with the Low Carbon Contracts Company were entered into on 27 March 2015. Renewables are also continuing to progress onshore wind projects under the RO
until it closes to new capacity on 31 March 2017. This is subject to an up to twelve month grace period to 31 March 2018 due to grid or aviation related delays.

2014 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue**
2014
£m

2013
Restated*
£m

334.1

278.5

Financial key performance indicators
Renewables

Profit from operations***

Capital investment****

2014
£m

2013
Restated*
£m

2014
£m

2013
Restated*
£m

87.0

105.7

432.3

401.0

* Comparative figures have been restated (see Note 2).
**

Segment total revenue as presented in Note 6(b) on page 38.

*** Segment profit from operations as presented in Note 6(c) on page 39.
**** Segment capital investment as presented in Note 6(d) on page 41.

Renewables revenue increased by £56 million to £334 million in 2014 due primarily to electricity output which increased by 11% to 3,110 GWh. Growth
in output was driven by a 22% increase in average operating capacity.

3

Wikinger operations is included within acquired entity Iberdrola Renovables Offshore Deutschland Zwei GmbH (refer to Note 36).
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued
RENEWABLES continued
2014 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE CONTINUED continued
Increased revenues have been offset by higher wind farm operating and maintenance costs (from both increased capacity and the end of turbine
warranty periods) and increased depreciation from a larger operational asset base. In addition, the business wrote off £9 million of other inventories (in
relation to an offshore transmission asset) and, in comparison to 2013, incurred £8 million higher development write off costs (in relation to projects
which will not be progressed further). As a result, profit from operations decreased by £19 million to £87 million in 2014.
Capital investment increased by £31 million to £432 million in 2014. UK based capital investment reduced as construction at the West of Duddon Sands
offshore wind farm reached completion. Offsetting this, investment spend increased following the acquisition of Wikinger in May 2014.
Non-financial key performance indicators
Plant output (GWh)
Installed capacity (MW)
Availability

Notes

2014

2013

(a)
(b)
(c)

3,110
1,627
96%

2,794
1,477
97%

(a) Plant output is a measure of the electrical output generated in the year, which in turn drives the revenues of the business.
(b) Installed capacity represents the total number of MW fully installed within the wind farm sites. This includes all turbines erected irrespective of whether they are generating
or not.
(c) Availability is a measure of how effective the business is at ensuring wind generating plant is available and ready to generate.

Following the introduction of West of Duddon Sands offshore operations, both plant output and installed capacity have increased.

LIQUIDITY AND CASH MANAGEMENT
Cash and net debt
Net cash flows from operating activities increased by £54 million to £1,204 million for the year. As detailed in the table below, net debt increased to
£4,799 million, principally due to the increase in capital expenditure over the year and the payment of dividends to the parent company. The movement
in net debt comprised an increase in external debt of £20 million and a decrease in cash and short term deposits of £21 million. Group loans payable
decreased by £321 million and group loans receivable were reduced by £863 million as a result of the recapitalisation of investments in intermediary
holding companies (see Note 42).
Analysis of net debt

Notes

2014
£m

2013
Restated*
£m

Cash and short term deposits

(a)

30.4

51.0

Group loans receivable

(b)

997.5

1,860.7

Group loans payable

(c)

(3,859.7)

External loans payable

(d)

(1,967.6)

(1,947.3)

(4,799.4)

(4,215.8)

Net debt

(4,180.2)

* Comparative figures have been restated (see Note 2).
(a) As detailed on the consolidated balance sheet, refer to page 18.
(b) Loans due from Iberdrola group companies, refer to Note 12 on page 51.
(c) Loans with Iberdrola S.A. and other related Iberdrola group companies, refer to Note 20 on page 59.
(d) External loans payable comprises external debt, as detailed in Note 20 on page 59.

Capital and debt structure
The company is funded by a combination of debt and equity. All equity is held by ScottishPower UK Holdings Limited (“SPUKH”). The group’s cash management
and short-term financing activity is integrated with Iberdrola’s. The group’s financing structure is determined by its position in the wider Iberdrola group. The
Iberdrola group objective is to retain sufficient liquid resources and facilities to cover anticipated cash flow requirements for a period in excess of twelve months;
currently liquidity is in excess of €10 billion, which can be utilised, if required, to fund the group’s activities. The company holds investment grade ratings with
Moody’s Investor Services (Baa1), and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services (BBB). Details of the group’s financial risk management policy are set out at Note 4.

TAXES AND OTHER GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS
To help give an understanding of the group’s contribution to UK taxes and other government obligations, the following table has been provided,
highlighting the key taxes and other obligations in the financial year, on an accruals and cash basis.
Income statement expense

Notes

2014
£m

2013
Restated*
£m

Carbon tax

(a)

84.5

Social security costs

(b)

27.5

Taxes other than income taxes

(c)

255.0

UK Corporation Tax

(d)

Analysis of taxes and other government obligations

Cash tax paid in the year
2014
£m

2013
Restated*
£m

34.3

87.0

30.8

25.9

28.2

26.7

253.4

259.5

282.9

115.0

121.7

113.8

135.8

482.0

435.3

488.5

476.2

* Comparative figures have been restated (see Note 2).
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Carbon tax is a tax levied by the UK Government on the fossil fuels used to generate electricity. This is included within ‘Procurements’ in the income statement.
Social security costs as presented in Note 25 on page 61.
Taxes other than income taxes as presented in Note 26 on page 62.
UK Corporation Tax as presented in Note 30 on page 63.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

ENERGY NETWORKS
RISK

RESPONSE

Regulatory uncertainty over future RIIO-ED1 distribution cash flows
until the CMA makes a decision in late Autum 2015 on two appeals.

The final determination for RIIO -ED1 was published November 2014.
Energy Networks has accepted the Licence modifications in respect
of SPD and SPM. However two appeals have been lodged with the
CMA, which may have an impact on the business. Business, Legal and
regulatory experts, with advisors, will work to ensure that a well–
founded and fair outcome is achieved.

Failure to deliver the Distribution and Transmission outputs agreed
with the regulator in their respective price controls.

Mitigating actions include formulating detailed investment,
resource, outage and contingency plans supported by an extensive
procurement strategy. Good communication and co-ordination of
activities across the business is integral to success, complemented
by a comprehensive monitoring regime that provides early warning
of potential issues.

ENERGY WHOLESALE AND RETAIL
RISK

RESPONSE

Risk of unfavourable result from capacity auctions, adversely
affecting the returns from generation assets.

Optimising returns from the energy market and efficient control of
costs, to maximise the chance of success in the auctions.

Risk that UK decarbonisation policies adversely affect the
business’ higher carbon generation plant.

Co-ordinated activities across commercial, technical and investment
decision making teams to ensure that appropriate commercial
decisions are made regarding the future of relevant assets.

Adverse wholesale price movements and reduced energy market
liquidity, adversely affecting the returns from generation assets.

Trading activity to secure value of assets and deliver return based on
expected price movements, and providing support to Ofgem
initiatives to stimulate liquidity.

The potential for plant performance issues reducing availability.

Technical assessments of key risk areas of operational performance,
an optimised approach to repairs and maintenance and plans specific
to each plant.

Reduction in retail margins as a result of reduced market share,
unfavourable wholesale energy costs and increasing non-energy costs.

Mitigating actions include a continued focus on creating innovative,
competitive products that complement current offerings whilst
continuing to enhance customer relationships.

The potential for non-compliance with the UK Government’s
mandate to complete the roll-out of smart metering to customers in
accordance with prescribed timescales.

Dedicated project team focussed on ensuring adequate business
processes and systems are developed. The team is responsible for
ensuring the roll-out capability is secured to enable deployment of
meters. Energy Retail is an active participant in industry bodies
responsible for developing smart metering technology and capability
across the UK.

Reputational risk from customer service performance.

Additional resource in place to handle customer queries and respond
to complaints. New ’Your Energy’ media campaign launched to
explain several initiatives in place to improve customer relationships.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors present their report and audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014.

INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT
The directors have chosen to disclose information on the following, required by the Companies Act 2006 to be included in the Directors’ Report, within
the Strategic Report, found on pages 1 to 10:
• information on financial risk management and policies; and
• information regarding future developments of the business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The net profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the parent amounted to £518.0 million (2013 £539.7 million). A dividend of £400.0
million was paid during the year (2013 £600.0 million).

TAXATION
In 2011, the Board of Directors of Iberdrola S.A., approved a ‘Good Tax Practices Policy’, part of the company’s corporate governance system, to be
implemented worldwide in companies that are part of the Iberdrola Group.
The group are responsible tax payers. Companies in the group seek to be open, honest and transparent in dealings with the tax authorities and to
comply with both the letter and the spirit of tax laws set by the Government. ScottishPower, and so the group, remits taxes due on a timely basis, and
has a relationship with HM Revenue and Customs based on mutual trust and cooperation.
In common with other businesses, companies in the group take advantage of available reliefs and concessions, many of which are designed to
encourage activities or practices that the Government believes are beneficial to the national economy. Generation, transmission and distribution of
electricity require significant investment in property, plant and equipment and the group benefits from reliefs that allow a greater proportion of the
capital costs of these items to be expensed in the calculation of taxable profit in earlier years of operation. This has no effect on the total amount of
Corporation Tax payable during the life of the asset, but it results in lower tax payments initially.
Further details on taxes and other government obligations can be found in the Strategic Report on page 7.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
ScottishPower, and so the group, is aware of the importance of innovation to develop an industrial project at the vanguard of the sector. ScottishPower’s
research and development (“R&D”) efforts are aimed at the optimisation of operational performance, improving security and reducing the environmental
impact of its activities. All R&D is developed as part of Iberdrola’s global open and decentralised R&D model.
ScottishPower’s main areas of development during the past year have been focused on the renewables offshore development, smart grids roll-out and the
increase in network performance and availability. During the year ended 31 December 2014 R&D effort (expenditure and investment) was £16.1 million.
Detailed information in relation to ScottishPower’s wider R&D activities can be found in the Iberdrola Innovation Report. The most recent report can be
accessed via the ‘Innovation’ section of www.iberdrola.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT AND REGULATION
Throughout its operations, ScottishPower, and so the group, strives to meet, or exceed, relevant legislative and regulatory environmental requirements
and codes of practice. ScottishPower’s businesses have environmental systems in accordance with ISO 14001:2004, including fully accredited systems
within Energy Wholesale and Retail and Energy Networks. The environmental activities of ScottishPower are governed within the Iberdrola Global
Environmental Management Model.
Detailed information on ScottishPower’s approach to environmental management and performance for 2014 can be found in the Iberdrola Sustainability
Report that can be accessed via the ‘Shareholders and Investors’ section of www.iberdrola.com.
Further information on applicable environmental regulations is available on request from the Company Secretary.

EMPLOYEES
The group had 6,590 employees as at 31 December 2014. Of these, 2,894 were employed in Energy Networks, 2,662 in Energy Wholesale and Retail and
258 in Renewables, with the remaining 776 employed in Corporate services. Refer to Note 25(b) for further details on employees.
Employment regulation
ScottishPower has well-defined policies in place throughout its businesses to ensure compliance with applicable laws and related codes of practice.
These policies cover a wide range of employment issues such as disciplinary, grievance, harassment, discrimination, stress, anti-bribery and ‘whistleblowing’ and have been brought together in the Code of Ethics of Iberdrola and its group of companies (which also outlines expectations for employees’
conduct).
Training
ScottishPower has a continuing commitment to training and personal development for its employees with over 15,000 training events (over 191,000
hours) undertaken in 2014. Much of the training is focused on health and safety and technical training ensuring field staff are safe and competent. In
addition ScottishPower recruits over 100 craft and engineering trainees annually who undertake a concentrated training period as part of their induction
and development programme, leading toward a recognised apprenticeship or formal engineering qualification. Team leaders and managers also participate
in core management skills training and there are management development programmes and modules aimed at increasing our leadership capability.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued
EMPLOYEES continued
Employee feedback and consultation
ScottishPower believes that it is important that all employees have the opportunity to get involved and share their views. In 2014 around 60% of
employees took part in the annual employee ’The LOOP’1 survey and the overall engagement score remained high at 75%. In 2014 the key areas of action
included the launch of an online development toolkit to improve the opportunities for employees to develop, a focus on internal communications to
keep employees more informed about what is happening in the organisation, and a review of how to best recognise the efforts of employees.
Regular consultation takes place with employees using a variety of means, including monthly team meetings, team managers’ conferences, business
roadshows, safety committees, employee relations mechanisms and presentations.
Equality and diversity
ScottishPower recognises the importance of difference and respects individuality as part of its ongoing commitment to promoting equality and
diversity. ScottishPower also understands that diversity goes beyond legally compliant policies and practices. It also includes a focus on creating an
innovative, integrated organisation where people feel valued, inspiring them to perform at their best. During 2014 Employers Network for Equality
& Inclusion (“ENEI”) were appointed to conduct an external diversity and inclusion audit across ScottishPower and support development of a clear,
specific and practical action plan. This action plan will be progressed throughout 2015.
Employment of disabled persons
In support of the policy on Equality and Diversity (above), ScottishPower expects all employees to be treated with respect and has supporting policy
guidance on People with Disabilities and Reasonable Adjustments to help ensure equality of employment opportunity for people with disabilities. The
aim of these guidelines is to establish working conditions that encourage the full participation of people with disabilities, which may be achieved
through activities such as: making adjustments and/or adaptations to premises; enabling access to the full range of recruitment and career opportunities
including the provision of specialist training; and the retention of existing staff who are affected by disability, through rehabilitation, training and
reassignment. ScottishPower also works with support organisations, such as Business Disability Forum, which provide support, guidance and sharing
of best practice to enable companies to become disability confident.
Employee health and wellbeing
ScottishPower promotes and supports the physical and mental health and wellbeing of its employees through a programme of health promotion and
information run by its occupational health department.
Employee volunteering
ScottishPower prides itself in being a good corporate neighbour, providing support to the communities it serves in each of its operating areas.
Volunteering is central to community involvement and ScottishPower has an excellent track record in this area. In 2014 ScottishPower introduced a new
company-wide Volunteering Policy. This policy gives all registered volunteers, on an annual basis, an opportunity to take an additional one day’s paid
leave, to be used as a volunteering day.

COMMUNITY RELATIONSHIPS
Community relationships
Building the trust of communities has been part of ScottishPower’s core values for many years. ScottishPower has a significant presence in many communities
and aims to conduct its activities responsibly, in a way that is considerate to local communities and makes a positive contribution to society.
Community consultation
ScottishPower engages with communities across its operations, where new and modernising developments are planned. The key areas where
ScottishPower’s business interacts with the community include the siting of new facilities, the presence of distribution and transmission lines and routine
maintenance and upkeep work. ScottishPower takes a proactive approach to providing good information from pre-planning through to construction.
ScottishPower maintains strong relationships with local communities by working with community groups, elected representatives, interest groups and
individuals ensuring that those affected by the work are aware of what is happening in their area in advance, allowing communities to have their say.
This is of particular importance to the business as a developer, owner and operator with longstanding relationships in many of the communities in
which it works.
A variety of methods of consultation are used to keep in touch with the needs and concerns of the communities potentially affected. ScottishPower’s
community consultation processes include representation at community meetings, presentations and forums. ScottishPower’s facilities host visits from
community groups, maintain a number of visitor centres and run Local Liaison Committees which provide a forum for discussion between local
management teams and community representatives.
Many of ScottishPower’s assets, such as wind farms and pylons, are situated on land not owned by ScottishPower, therefore it is important that effective
policies are in place to ensure that the safety and integrity of the plant is maintained, while respecting the needs of the landowner, the local community
and the general public. Energy Networks and those working on its behalf adhere to a Grantor’s Charter which sets out guidance of commitment to
grantors and has been prepared in consultation with key stakeholders.
Investing in the community
ScottishPower has a long track record of supporting communities not only financially, but also by sharing its resources and the skills of its employees.
ScottishPower promotes payroll giving and encourages employee development through volunteering and community based programmes.
Opportunities are created for local employment during construction and operations through events such as ”Meet the Developer” days where local
contractors are invited to find out about opportunities at the group’s wind farms. The group works closely with the UK and devolved administrations
to develop policy on community engagement and benefit and adhere to all voluntary codes of good practice.
ScottishPower uses the London Benchmarking Group (“LBG”) model to evaluate its community investment activity. The model is used by hundreds of
leading businesses around the world and provides a comprehensive and consistent set of measures for companies to determine their contributions to
the community.
1

The ‘LOOP’ survey is an internal employee relations initiative.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued
COMMUNITY RELATIONSHIPS continued
Investing in the community continued
During the year ended 31 December 2014, ScottishPower voluntarily contributed £6.9 million in community support activity of which £3.3 million was
contributed to registered charitable organisations. The £6.9 million total incorporated £0.5 million in management costs, £0.1 million categorised as
charitable gifts, £4.2 million categorised as community investment and £2.1 million categorised as commercial initiatives; given in cash, through staff
time and in-kind donations.
These figures are compiled from ScottishPower’s Community Investment Database, and are submitted annually in a return to LBG. The figures provided
above will form part of the company’s 2015 return and have not yet been audited by LBG.
ScottishPower Foundation
In 2013, ScottishPower established the ScottishPower Foundation to reinforce ScottishPower’s commitment to charitable work throughout the UK.
ScottishPower Foundation is a registered Scottish charity (SC043862) and a company limited by guarantee (SC445116). Registered Office: 1 Atlantic
Quay, Glasgow G2 8SP. It provides funds to support charitable initiatives that promote the advancement of education, environmental protection,
citizenship and community development, arts, culture and science as well as the prevention of poverty or disadvantage.

POLITICAL DONATIONS AND EXPENDITURE
The group is a politically neutral organisation. It is subject to the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000, which defines political
“donations” and “expenditure” in wider terms than would be commonly understood by these phrases. During the year ended 31 December 2014,
The group paid a total of £21,000 for the sponsorship of conferences and events – activities that may be regarded as falling within the terms of the Act.
The recipients of these payments were:
• The Conservative Party
• The Labour Party
• The Scottish National Party

£7,000
£7,000
£7,000

The group was represented at all the major UK political party conferences in 2014, and sponsored receptions at the conferences of the above parties.
These occasions provide an important opportunity for the group to represent its views on a non-partisan basis to politicians from across the political
spectrum. The payments do not indicate support for any particular party.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The ultimate parent of the company is Iberdrola S.A., which is listed on the Madrid stock exchange.
As a general guiding principle, the group adopts the principles and rules contained in the most widely recognised good governance recommendations
and, in particular, has taken as a reference the Uniform Good Governance Code for Listed Companies approved by the National Securities Market
Commission of Spain.
Administrative, management and supervisory bodies
Board and management meetings
The company is governed by a Board, consisting of three directors who bring a broad range of skills and experience to the company. All are full-time
employees of the Iberdrola group.
The directors of the company are subject to annual evaluation of their performance in respect of their executive responsibilities as part of the
performance management system which is in place throughout ScottishPower.
The Co-ordination Committee ensures executive focus on coordinating the activities of ScottishPower.
The Co-ordination Committee meets fortnightly and receives regular information on the activities of ScottishPower in order to support the corporate
functions and lines of business in understanding the local, legal, regulatory and market specifics in the UK and assist the Chief Corporate Officer (“CCO”)
in the performance of his duties. The Co-ordination Committee reports to the ScottishPower Board and currently comprises the following executives:
the CCO (who is also Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Renewables business), the directors of Finance, Regulation, Human Resources (“HR”),
Communications, the CEO of the Liberalised Business, the CEO of the Regulated Business, the CEO of the Renewables business and the Head of Legal.
The Boards of Scottish Power Energy Networks Holdings Limited (“SPENH”), Scottish Power Generation Holdings Limited (”SPGH”) and Scottish Power
Renewable Energy Limited (“SPREL”) are responsible for the effective management of the Regulated (Energy Networks), Liberalised (Energy Wholesale
and Retail) and Renewables businesses respectively, in accordance with the strategy set by the ScottishPower Board. These Boards meet regularly and
review strategy, operational performance and risk issues on behalf of the respective business.
SPENH Board
The SPENH Board comprises the Chairman Javier Villalba Sanchez and six other directors as at 31 December 2014. The directors and their attendance at
SPENH Board meetings held during the period under review (six meetings) are shown in the table below:
Javier Villalba Sanchez (Chairman)
Frank Mitchell (Chief Executive Officer)
Nicola Connelly
Antonio Espinosa de los Monteros
José Izaguirre Nazar
Scott Mathieson
Dame Denise Holt (Independent non-executive director)
Professor Sir James McDonald (Independent non-executive director)

Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended four meetings
Attended two meetings (resigned 24 June 2014)
Attended three meetings (appointed 21 March 2014)

Elizabeth Haywood and Wendy Barnes were appointed to the SPENH Board as Independent non-executive directors on 1 January 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued
SPGH Board
The SPGH Board comprises the Chairman Armando Martínez Martínez and seven other directors as at 31 December 2014. The directors and their
attendance at SPGH Board meetings held during the period under review (five meetings) are shown in the table below:
Francisco Martínez Córcoles (Chairman)
Armando Martínez Martínez (Chairman)
Neil Clitheroe (Chief Executive Officer)
Heather Chalmers
Ángel Chiarri Toscano
Hugh Finlay
Oscar Fortis Pita
Aitor Moso Raigoso
Félix Rojo Sevillano

Attended three meetings (resigned 1 August 2014)
Attended two meetings (appointed 1 August 2014)
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended four meetings
Attended four meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings

Non-executive oversight is provided at ScottishPower group level by the ScottishPower Board.
SPREL Board
The SPREL Board comprises the Chairman Xabier Viteri and four other directors as at 31 December 2014. The directors and their attendance at SPREL
board meetings held during the period under review (five meetings) are shown in the table below:
Xabier Viteri (Chairman)
Keith Anderson (Chief Executive Officer)
Jonathan Cole
Pablo Canales Abaitua
Javier Garcia de Fuentes
Unai Astiz

Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended four meetings
Attended three meetings (resigned 27 October 2014)
Attended all meetings
Attend one meeting (appointed 27 October 2014)

Non-executive oversight is provided at ScottishPower group level by the ScottishPower Board.
ScottishPower Board
The ScottishPower Board comprises the Chairman José Ignacio Sánchez Galán and eight other directors as at 31 December 2014. José Ignacio Sánchez
Galán is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Iberdrola.
The directors of Scottish Power Limited and their classifications are shown in the table below:
José Ignacio Sánchez Galán (Chairman)
Lord Kerr of Kinlochard GCMG (Vice Chairman)
José Miguel Alcolea Cantos
Keith Anderson
Professor Susan Deacon
Sir Tom Farmer CVO CBE KCSG
Rt Hon Lord Macdonald of Tradeston CBE
Juan Carlos Rebollo Liceaga
José Sainz Armada

Non-independent, non-executive director
Independent, non-executive director
Non-independent, non-executive director
Executive director
Independent non-executive director
Independent non-executive director
Independent non-executive director
Non-independent, non-executive director
Non-independent, non-executive director

ScottishPower Board meetings were held on six occasions during the period under review. Attendance by the directors was as follows:
José Ignacio Sánchez Galán (Chairman)
Lord Kerr of Kinlochard GCMG (Vice Chairman)
José Miguel Alcolea Cantos
Keith Anderson
Professor Susan Deacon
Sir Tom Farmer CVO CBE KCSG
Rt Hon Lord Macdonald of Tradeston CBE
Juan Carlos Rebollo Liceaga
José Sainz Armada

Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meeting
Attended all meetings
Attended four meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings
Attended all meetings

There is no Senior Independent Director on the ScottishPower Board.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued
ScottishPower Audit and Compliance Committee (“ACC”)
The ACC, a permanent internal body, has an informative and consultative role, without executive functions, with powers of information, assessment
and presentation of proposals to the ScottishPower Board within its scope of action, which is governed by the Articles of Association of Scottish Power
Limited and by the Terms of Reference of the ACC. The ACC’s responsibilities include:
• monitoring the financial reporting process for ScottishPower;
• monitoring the effectiveness of the ScottishPower’s internal control, internal audit, compliance and risk management systems; and
• monitoring the statutory audit of the annual and consolidated accounts of ScottishPower.
The ACC comprises three members, including two independents, as indicated in the table below.
The ACC met six times during the year under review. The members of the ACC and their attendance record are shown in the table below:
Rt Hon Lord Macdonald of Tradeston CBE (Chairman)
Professor Susan Deacon
Juan Carlos Rebollo Liceaga

External independent, attended all meetings
External independent, attended all meetings
Non-independent, attended all meetings

Iberdrola Appointments and Remuneration Committee (“IARC”)
There is no separate Appointments Committee or Remuneration Committee within ScottishPower. Instead appointment and remuneration matters
relevant to ScottishPower are dealt with by the IARC. The members of the IARC are:
Inés Macho Stadler (Chairperson)
Iñigo Victor de Oriol Ibarra
Santiago Martínez Lage

External independent
External independent
External independent

The IARC has the power to supervise the process of selection of directors and senior managers of the Iberdrola group companies, and to assist the
Boards of Directors in the determination and supervision of the compensation policy for the above-mentioned persons.
Internal control
During the year under review, the directors of the company had overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls within the group and they participated in the review of internal controls over financial reporting, the preparation of consolidated Accounts and
the certification process which took place on a ScottishPower group-wide basis. The effectiveness of the system within ScottishPower was kept under
review through the work of the ACC. The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate risk. In pursuing these objectives,
internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
A risk and control governance framework is in place across ScottishPower. The risk management framework and internal control system is subject to
continuous review and development. The company is committed to ensuring that a proper control environment is maintained. There is a commitment
to competence and integrity and to the communication of ethical values and control consciousness to managers and employees. HR policies underpin
that commitment by a focus on enhancing job skills and promoting high standards of probity among staff. In addition, the appropriate organisational
structure has been developed within which to control the businesses and to delegate authority and accountability, having regard to acceptable levels of
risk. The company’s expectations in this regard are set out in ‘ScottishPower Code of Ethics’, a policy document which aims to summarise some of the
main legal, regulatory, cultural and business standards applicable to all employees. This document has been distributed to all employees of the
company.
ScottishPower has fraud and anti-bribery policies and procedures in place to ensure that all incidences of fraud and bribery are appropriately
investigated and reported. Further, ScottishPower has adopted a revised Speaking Out and Whistleblower Protection Policy, incorporating a confidential
external reporting service operated by an independent provider. This policy, which is applicable to employees of the company, covers the reporting and
investigation of suspected fraud, bribery, and misappropriation, questionable accounting, financial reporting or auditing matters, breaches of internal
financial control procedures, and serious breaches of behaviour and ethical principles. There is also a process in existence within ScottishPower whereby
all members of staff may report any financial irregularities to the Audit and Risk Supervision Committee of Iberdrola.
Identification and evaluation of risks and control objectives
During the year under review the ScottishPower governance structure was supported by risk policies adopted by the ScottishPower Board. These risk
policies are adopted by the ScottishPower Board on an annual basis. ScottishPower business risk assessment teams and the independent group risk
management function support the ScottishPower Board in the execution of due diligence and risk management. In addition, the SPENH, SPGH and
SPREL Boards are responsible for ensuring that their respective businesses’ risks are adequately assessed, monitored, mitigated and managed.
ScottishPower's strategy, which is adopted by the company, is to conduct business in a manner benefiting customers through balancing cost and risk
while delivering shareholder value and protecting ScottishPower's performance and reputation by prudently managing the risks inherent in the
business. ScottishPower develops and implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control environment at all levels
of the organisation.
The company identifies and assesses the key business risks associated with the achievement of its strategic objectives. Any key actions needed to
further enhance the control environment are identified, along with the person responsible for the management of the specific risk.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued
Auditor independence
The Audit and Risk Supervision Committee of Iberdrola is responsible for the nomination of the external auditors. This committee and the firm of
external auditors have safeguards to avoid the possibility that the auditors' objectivity and independence could be compromised.
Where the work to be undertaken is of a nature that is generally considered reasonable to be completed by the external auditors for sound commercial
and practical reasons, including confidentiality, the conduct of such work is permissible provided that all necessary internal governance requirements
have been met.
Social, environmental and ethical matters
Social, environmental and ethical ("SEE") matters are managed through the risk management framework and internal control system within the group.
As such, regular account is taken of the strategic significance of SEE matters to the group, and the risks and opportunities arising from these issues that
may have an impact on the group's short-term and long-term values are considered.
Further information regarding the SEE matters can be found in the ‘Corporate Social Responsibility’ section of www.scottishpower.com.

DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:
Daniel Alcain Lopez
Marion Venman
Donald Wright

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ACCOUNTS
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union.
The directors are responsible for preparing Accounts for each financial period that give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of
affairs of the company and the group and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing those Accounts, the directors are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether the parent company and the group Accounts comply with IFRSs, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the Accounts; and
• prepare the Accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and the group and to enable them to ensure that the parent company Accounts and the group Accounts comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.
Each of the directors in office as at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts confirms that:
• so far as he or she is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and
• he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young LLP were re-appointed as auditor of the company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Daniel Alcain Lopez
Director
29 April 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
to the member of Scottish Power UK plc

We have audited the Accounts of Scottish Power UK plc for the year ended 31 December 2014 which comprise the Consolidated and Company Balance
Sheets, the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements, and the related notes 1 to 57. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
This report is made solely to the company’s member as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s member those matters we are required to state to it in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
member, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 16, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the Accounts
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Accounts in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE ACCOUNTS
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Accounts sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Accounts are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the Accounts. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited Accounts, and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON ACCOUNTS
In our opinion:
• the Accounts give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the group’s profit
for the year then ended;
• the group Accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
• the parent company Accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs, as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
• the Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Accounts are prepared is
consistent with the Accounts.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or
• the parent company Accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Annie Graham (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Glasgow
29 April 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
31 December 2014

1 GROUP ACTIVITIES
The group provides electricity transmission and distribution services in the UK, supplies gas and electricity services to homes and businesses across the
UK, operates electricity generation and gas storage facilities and provides associated energy management activities in the UK. It also conducts renewable
energy activities across the UK and Republic of Ireland and from mid-2014 in France and Germany.
As described in Note 6, in line with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, the group defines operating segments for management purposes based on a
combination of factors, principally differences in products and services and the regulatory environment in which the business operates.
For management purposes, the group operated three principal business during the year: Energy Networks, Energy Wholesale and Retail and Renewables.
Energy Networks
The transmission and distribution businesses within the group’s authorised area in the South of Scotland and the distribution business of Manweb
operating in Cheshire, Merseyside, North Shropshire and North Wales.
Energy Wholesale and Retail
The generation of electricity from the group’s own power stations, the purchase of external supplies of coal and gas for the generation of electricity,
the purchase of external supplies of electricity and gas for onward sale to customers, the optimisation of gas storage and the sale of electricity to market
participants in the UK and the sale of electricity and gas to industrial and domestic customers, together with related billing and collection activities.
Renewables
The construction and the development of renewable energy generation assets and the generation and sale of electricity from those assets.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS
The company is required by law to prepare Accounts for both the company and the group and to deliver them to the Registrar of Companies. Both the
group (being these consolidated Accounts) and the company’s individual Accounts, have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards (“IAS”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)
Interpretations (collectively referred to as IFRS), as adopted by the EU as at the date of approval of these Accounts and which are mandatory for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014. Both the group and company Accounts are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Policies set out in Note 3.

A1 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
IFRS11 ACOUNTING FOR JOINT ARRANGEMENTS
From 1 January 2014 the group has applied IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ (“IFRS 11”) and IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ (“IFRS 10”) and has
reassessed the consolidation methods employed for all joint arrangements in the group. As a result of this reassessment, the group has changed the
consolidation method from proportional consolidation to the equity method in respect of six joint arrangements. In accordance with the transition
requirements set out in the standard, the opening balances for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been restated as though equity accounting had been
applied from 1 January 2013. The effects of this change in accounting policy are set out in Note 38 to the Accounts.

B. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
In preparing these Accounts, the group has applied all relevant IAS, IFRS and IFRIC Interpretations which have been adopted by the EU as of the date of
approval of these Accounts and which are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time:
Standard

Notes

• IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’

(a)

• IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’

(a)

• IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

(a)

• IAS 27 (Revised) ‘Separate Financial Statements’

(a)

• IAS 28 (Revised) ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’

(a)

• Amendments to IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

(b)

• Amendments to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 11‘Joint Arrangements’ and IFRS 12
‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities – Transition Guidance’

(a)

• Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 ‘Investment Entities’

(a)

• Amendments to IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets’

(b)

• Amendments to IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

(b)

(a) The group has applied the various consolidation standards as from 1 January 2014. All subsidiaires and investments in the group have been reviewed in the light of the
requirements of IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 and the revisions to IAS 27 and IAS 28. As noted at A1 above, applying the guidance of IFRS 11, six of the group's joint arrangements
will now be consolidated using the equity method. Details of the impact of this change are set out at Note 38 to the Accounts. Additional disclosures have also been
presented throughout these Accounts in relation to the requirements of IFRS 12.
(b) The application of these pronouncements did not have a material impact the group’s accounting policies, financial position or performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2014

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION continued
B. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS continued
Standard

Notes

IASB effective
date (for periods
commencing on or after)

Planned date
of application by
the group

• IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’

(c), (d)

1 January 2014

1 January 2015

• Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions’

(c)

1 July 2014

1 January 2015

• Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2010-2012)

(c)

1 July 2014

1 January 2015

• Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2011-2013)

(c)

1 July 2014

1 January 2015

• IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

(c), (e)

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• Amendments to IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements: Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations’

(c), (e)

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and IAS 38
(c), (e)
‘Intangible Assets’ – ‘Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and IAS 41
‘Agriculture’ – ‘Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

(c), (e)

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2012-2014)

(c), (e)

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 12
‘Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures’ – ‘Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidated Exception’

(c), (e)

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method
in Separate Financial Statements'

(c), (e)

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements:
Disclosure Initiative’

(c), (e)

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

• IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

(e), (f)

1 January 2017

1 January 2017

• IFRS 9 ’Financial Instruments’

(e), (f)

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

• Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and IAS 28
‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ – ‘Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

(c), (e), (g)

To be decided

To be decided

(c) The future application of these pronouncements is not expected to have a material impact on the company’s accounting policies, financial position or performance.
(d) Althought the effective date of this interpretation is 1 January 2014, it was not endorsed by the EU until 13 June 2014, therefore it will not be applied by the group until
1 January 2015.
(e) These pronouncements have not yet been adopted by the EU.
(f)

The directors are currently in the process of assessing the impact of this standard in relation to the company’s accounting policies, financial position and performance.

(g) The effective date for this amendment was for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016. However the EU endorsement process for this amendment has been
postponed, awaiting a revised exposure draft from the IASB. The effective date will be amended in due course.
(h) The group has chosen not to early adopt any of these standards/amendments for year ended 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2014

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION continued
B. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS continued
The Energy Companies Obligation (“ECO”) was established on 4 December 2012 by The Electricity and Gas (Energy Company Obligation) Order 2012
(“the Order”). It imposes a legal obligation on larger energy suppliers to deliver energy efficiency measures to domestic energy users.
Once a supplier has been considered eligible for the ECO obligation, based on their domestic customer numbers, the amount of the obligation is
established based on the amount of energy supplied to such domestic customers. The overall obligation period is multiannual and commenced on
1 January 2013. The overall obligation period is broken down into different phases. For each phase, Ofgem determines the amount of each supplier’s
obligation based on the domestic energy supplied by each energy supplier as a proportion of the total domestic energy supplied by all suppliers during
the relevant notification period.
The group considers that the appropriate accounting treatment is prescribed by IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’,
as this obligation complies with the three features to be considered for a provision (present obligation, probable out-flow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made). In accordance with a legal opinion obtained by the group, it is considered that an obligation arises for each phase of the overall
obligation period. For this reason, it is appropriate to consider this obligation as an additional cost of supply to domestic customers, as this activity
constitutes the obligating event, as defined under IAS 37.
In his Autumn Statement on 5 December 2013, with the goal of reducing the energy tariffs of domestic customers, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
announced an extension of the end of the overall obligation period from 31 March 2015 to 31 March 2017. Under the described accounting treatment,
as a result of this extension, there would be an immediate and corresponding impact of decreasing the cost of supply to the affected customers in the
financial statements in the relevant accounting periods.
The Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) staff paper ‘Accounting for the Energy Company Obligation’, dated 27 September 2013, indicates that the
expenditure should be recognised as the assigned measures are being implemented, regardless of the rate at which energy is supplied to the domestic
customers. The external auditor has determined that this is the only accounting treatment which is acceptable.
Based on the FRC staff paper and the opinion of the external auditor, the group has recorded the expense in its financial statements as the measures were
actually implemented during the year. This accounting treatment involves recording £17 million (2013 £40 million) in addition to the amount that would have
resulted from following a recognition rate of the obligation consistent with the rate of energy supplied to domestic customers during the accounting period.

C. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated Accounts incorporate the Accounts of the company and its subsidiaries to 31 December each year.
Subsidiaries are those entities over which the group has the right to control, generally where a shareholding confers more than half of the voting rights.
On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the fair value of any assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. The interest of minority shareholders is initially stated at the minority’s
proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised. In accordance with the exemption permitted by IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards’, business combinations accounted for prior to the group’s date of transition to IFRS on 1 April 2004 have not been restated to
comply with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
For the consolidated group, intra-group transfers of subsidiaries within the Iberdrola group, but outwith the Scottish Power UK plc group, are deemed to be
business combinations under common control. These transactions are accounted for using the pooling of interests method. The results for the subsidiaries
transferred are included in the income statement from the effective date of acquisition. The net assets incorporated at the date of acquisition reflect the book
value of each of the subsidiaries included in the Iberdrola S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements, the highest entity that has common control for which
consolidated IFRS financial statements are prepared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2014

3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in preparing the group’s consolidated Accounts and, where applicable, the company’s Accounts, are set out
below. The ‘group’ is defined as Scottish Power UK plc and its consolidated subsidiaries. The ‘company’ or ‘SPUK’ refers to Scottish Power UK plc.
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.
I.
J.
K.
L.
M.
N.
O.

REVENUE
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (COMPUTER SOFTWARE COSTS)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LEASED ASSETS
IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (EXCLUDING GOODWILL)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
INVENTORIES (EXCLUDING EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES)
EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES
GRANTS AND TRANSFERS OF ASSETS FROM CUSTOMERS
RETIREMENT BENEFITS
DECOMMISSIONING COSTS
FOREIGN CURRENCIES
TAXATION
INVESTMENTS

A. REVENUE
Revenue comprises the sales value of electricity and gas and other related energy services supplied to customers during the year and excludes Value
Added Tax and intra-group sales. The group recognises revenue in respect of its principal revenue-generating operations as follows:
Transmission and distribution – revenue comprises charges made to the Great Britain system operator for the use of the transmission network and
charges made to customers for use of the distribution network. Revenue includes accruals in respect of unbilled income relating to units transferred
over the network established from data flows.
Generation – revenue comprises the value of units supplied during the year. Units are based on energy volumes that can actually be sold on the
wholesale market and are recorded on wind farm and power station meters and industry-wide trading and settlement systems. Revenue from wind
farms also includes the value of ROCs and Levy Exemption Certificates (“LECs”) sold during the year.
Wholesale – revenue comprises the value of units of wholesale energy supplied to customers during the year. Units are based on energy volumes that
can actually be sold on the wholesale market and are recorded using industry-wide trading and settlement systems. Purchases of wholesale energy are
reported within procurements.
Retail – revenue from the sale of energy to retail customers is the value of units supplied during the year and includes an estimate of the value of units
supplied to customers between the date of their last meter reading and the year end, based on external data supplied by the electricity and gas market
settlement process.
Gas storage – natural gas storage revenues are recognised over the contract period and hub service revenues are recognised at the point of gas flowing
into or out of the storage facilities.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportional basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate which exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the asset to that asset’s carrying amount.

B. GOODWILL
Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of an acquired subsidiary or business at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication of impairment. Any impairment is
recognised in the income statement in the period in which it is identified.
On disposal of a subsidiary, associate, jointly controlled entity or business, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions after 31 March 1998 but prior to the group’s date of transition to IFRS, 1 April 2004, has been retained as an asset at the
previous UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles amounts as at 1 April 2004.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April 1998 was written off against reserves and will not be included in determining any subsequent profit or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2014

3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
C. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (COMPUTER SOFTWARE COSTS)
The costs of acquired computer software are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over their operational lives. Costs directly associated with the development of computer software programmes that will probably
generate economic benefits over a period in excess of one year are capitalised and amortised, on a straight-line basis, over their estimated operational lives.
Costs include employee costs relating to software development and an appropriate proportion of relevant overheads directly attributable to bringing the
software into use. Amortisation of computer software costs is over periods of up to eight years.

D. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The group and company property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and is generally depreciated on the straight-line method over the estimated
operational lives of the assets. Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised employee, interest and other directly attributable costs. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of major qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Reviews are undertaken annually of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment. Residual values
are assessed based on prices prevailing at each balance sheet date.
Land is not depreciated. The main depreciation periods used by the group and the company are as set out below.
Years

Hydro-electric plants
Fossil fuel plants
Combined cycle plants
Gas storage facilities
Wind farms
Transmission facilities
Distribution facilities
Meters and measuring devices
Other facilities and other items of property, plant and equipment

5-105
2-48
2-37
10-35
21-24
40
23-40
2-10
1-50

E. LEASED ASSETS
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, whether
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right
is not explicitly specified in the arrangement. For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2004, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 April 2004 in
accordance with the transitional requirements of IFRIC 4 ‘Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease’.
The group classifies leases as finance leases whenever the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
Finance lease receivables are initially recognised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of future payments. Finance
income is subsequently recognised over the useful life of the leased asset using the effective interest method.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

F. IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (EXCLUDING GOODWILL)
At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets,
the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This policy is applicable to both the group’s consolidated Accounts and the company’s individual Accounts.

G1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IAS 39
(a)

Financial assets categorised as trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts. Allowance for doubtful debts has been estimated by management, taking into account future cash flows, based on past
experience and assessment of the current economic environment within which the group operates.

(b) The carrying amount of finance lease receivables is calculated as set out in Note 3E.
(c)

Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and term deposits which are readily convertible into a
known amount of cash without a significant risk of changes in value. In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents exclude term deposits
which have a maturity of more than 90 days at the date of acquisition and include bank overdrafts repayable on demand the next business day and
the net of current loans receivable and payable from group companies.

(d) Financial liabilities categorised as trade and other payables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2014

3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
G1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IAS 39 continued
(e)

All interest bearing loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Interest bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where the loan or borrowing is a hedged
item in an effective fair value hedging relationship (see G3. Hedge Accounting).

(f)

Other investments are valued at fair value at the balance sheet date except where it is not possible to obtain a fair value for unquoted investments.
Revaluation surpluses and deficits are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

(g)

The group enters into sale and purchase transactions for gas, electricity, oil and coal in the normal course of its energy business. Most of these
contracts are entered into for the purposes of the group’s expected business requirements. These ‘own use’ contracts are outside the scope
of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, and are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Certain physical commodity purchase and sale contracts are within the scope of IAS 39 because they are net settled or are capable of net settlement.
All such contracts are classified as derivative financial instruments in accordance with IAS 39. The group also enters into treasury-related derivatives to
manage its financial risk. The group’s policies and management with respect to risks are discussed in Note 4.
IAS 39 requires all derivatives to be recognised on the balance sheet at fair value. Embedded derivatives in other financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not carried at fair value through the income statement.
Unrealised gains or losses on remeasurement of derivatives and embedded derivatives are reported in the income statement except when hedge
accounting is applied (see G3 below). Fair value gains and losses on derivatives used in the group’s energy management activities are recognised in the
income statement within procurements and fair value gains and losses on derivatives used in the group’s treasury activities are recognised in the
income statement as finance income or finance costs as appropriate.

G2. RISK CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
The group’s strategy is to conduct business in a manner benefiting customers through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and
protecting the group’s performance and reputation by prudently managing the risks inherent in the business. To maintain this strategic direction the
group develops and implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a rigid control environment at all levels of the organisation.
Further details of the group’s strategy and management of risks are discussed in detail in Note 4.

G3. HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Hedge accounting is applied when certain conditions required by IAS 39 are met. Hedge accounting falls into the following categories:

G3.1 CASH FLOW HEDGES
The portion of gain or loss of the hedging instrument that was determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity and forms part of
the hedge reserve. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the hedging instruments is recognised in the income statement within
procurements for hedges of underlying operations. For hedges of financing activities, any ineffectiveness is recognised within finance income or
finance costs, as appropriate, in the income statement. If the cash flow hedge relates to an underlying transaction which results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are recognised in the initial
measurement of the asset arising from the hedged transaction. For hedges that relate to an underlying transaction which results in recognition of a
financial asset or a liability, amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income statement in the same period in which the hedged item affects the
income statement.

G3.2 FAIR VALUE HEDGES
The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised directly in the income statement in the same location as the gain
or loss from remeasuring the hedged item. The gain or loss on the hedged item adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item (when the item would
otherwise have been measured at amortised cost) and is recognised in the income statement. The group starts amortisation of any such adjustments to
the carrying value of the hedged item when the hedging relationship ends.

G3.3 HEDGE EFFECTIVENESS
Hedge effectiveness is measured and respective entries recorded in the balance sheet, reserves and income statement on a monthly basis in respect of
commodities and on a half-yearly basis in respect of treasury hedging relationships. Hedge effectiveness is achieved where the correlation between the
changes in value of the hedging instrument and the hedged item is between 80% and 125%.

G3.4 DISCONTINUING HEDGE ACCOUNTING
The group discontinues prospectively hedge accounting when the hedge instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, when the hedge
relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting or when the designation is revoked. In the case of cash flow hedging, any gain or loss that has
been recognised in equity until that time remains separately recognised in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. If the transaction is no longer
expected to occur, related cumulative gains and losses which have been previously deferred in equity are recognised in the income statement.
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3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
G4. VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
In those circumstances where IAS 39 requires financial instruments to be recognised in the balance sheet at fair value, The group’s valuation strategies
for derivative and other financial instruments utilise as far as possible quoted prices in an active trading market.
In the absence of quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities, it is sometimes necessary to apply valuation techniques where contracts are
marked using approved models. Models are used for developing both the forward curves and the valuation metrics of the instruments themselves
where the instruments are complex combinations of standard or non-standard products. All models are subject to rigorous testing prior to being
approved for valuation and subsequent continuous testing and approval procedures designed to ensure the validity and accuracy of the model
assumptions and inputs.

G5. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The group offsets a financial asset and a financial liability and reports the net amount only when the group has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

H. INVENTORIES (EXCLUDING EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES)
Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost and net realisable value.

I. EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES
The group participates in the EU Emissions Trading Scheme (“EU ETS”). In line with the commencement of Phase III of the EU ETS on 1 January 2013, and as
there are no specific rules under IFRS dealing with the treatment of emissions allowances, the group, in alignment with Iberdrola group accounting policy,
classified purchased emissions allowances as inventories as they are consumed in the production process. Such allowances are recognised at their
acquisition cost. Emissions allowances are charged to the income statement as the emissions arise.
The group recognises liabilities in respect of its obligations to deliver emissions allowances at the value at which these allowances were initially recognised
on the balance sheet. If it is estimated that it will be necessary to deliver more emissions allowances than recorded on the balance sheet, the liability for
this shortfall is calculated based on the market price of the allowances at the balance sheet date.

J. GRANTS AND TRANSFERS OF ASSETS FROM CUSTOMERS
Capital and revenue grants and transfers of assets from customers are credited to deferred income within non-current liabilities.
Pursuant to the applicable industry regulations, the group occasionally receives contributions from its customers for the construction of grid
connection facilities, or is assigned such assets that must be used to connect those customers to a network and provide them with ongoing access to
a supply of goods or services, or both. As the installation received is considered to be payment for ongoing access to the supply of the goods and
services, it is credited to deferred income and released to the income statement over the estimated operational lives of the related assets.
Revenue grants and transfers of assets from customers are released to the income statement over the period in which they are intended to contribute
to expenditure incurred.

K. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The group and the company provides pensions through defined benefit schemes and one defined contribution scheme.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit schemes is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability are recognised, directly in retained earnings, in the period in
which they occur and are shown in the statement of comprehensive income. The current service cost element of the pension charge is recognised
within ‘Staff costs’ in the consolidated income statement. Interest on the net defined benefit liability is defined by changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the reporting period that arises from the passage of the time and is determined by multiplying the net defined benefit liability or
asset by the discount rate (market yields on high quality corporate bonds). Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is included within
‘Finance costs’ and ‘Finance income’, respectively, in the consolidated income statement. The retirement benefits asset and liability recognised in the
balance sheet represent the net surpluses and deficits respectively in the group’s defined benefit pension schemes.
Payments to the defined contribution scheme are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2014

3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
L. DECOMMISSIONING COSTS
Provision is made, on a discounted basis, for the estimated decommissioning costs at the end of the producing lives of the group’s power stations and
wind farms. Capitalised decommissioning costs are depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets. The unwinding of the discount is included
within ‘Finance costs’.

M. FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the spot rate at the date of the transaction. At the year end, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, with exchange gains and losses recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
The results and cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated to sterling at average rates of exchange. The net assets of such subsidiaries, including
fair value adjustments and the goodwill arising on their acquisition, are translated to sterling at the closing rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date.

N. TAXATION
The group’s and the company’s liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits (temporary differences), and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or credits can be utilised.
Deferred tax is calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged in the income statement,
except where it relates to items charged or credited to equity (via the statement of comprehensive income), in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity and is shown in the statement of comprehensive income.

O. INVESTMENTS
The company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated in the balance sheet at cost, or fair value of shares issued as consideration where applicable.
Dividends from subsidiaries are recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the group’s operations. The group has loans and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and
short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations. The group also holds other investments, finance lease receivables and enters into
derivative contracts.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the group has been exposed to energy market risk, credit risk and treasury risk. The group’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks. Details of the governance structure in place are summarised below.
During the year under review, the ScottishPower governance structure, and so that of the group, was supported by risk policies adopted by the
ScottishPower Board. These risk policies are adopted and the risk limits and indicators are approved by the ScottishPower Board on an annual basis.
ScottishPower business risk assessment teams and the independent group risk management function support the ScottishPower Board in the execution
of due diligence and risk management. In addition, the Boards of the group’s businesses are responsible for ensuring that their respective business risks
are adequately assessed, monitored, mitigated and managed. The UK Risk Director reports on risks for ScottishPower to the ScottishPower Audit and
Compliance Committee and such reports are then presented to the ScottishPower Board.
The governance structure ensured that the risk management policies established for each business to identify, assess, monitor, report, manage and
mitigate each of the various types of risk involved in its business were adequately designed and implemented and that an effective and efficient system
of internal controls was maintained. The businesses adhered to their specific business risk limits and guidelines which were approved by the
ScottishPower Board.
The position on risk and strategy for risk management were contained in the Risk Policy for Iberdrola’s businesses in the UK (ScottishPower). The
ScottishPower Board adopted these policies and they were implemented through a rigid risk governance structure, whereby responsibilities were vested
with groups, committees and individuals on a global as well as business level. Generally, the risk management policy and control environment ensured
that transactions undertaken and instruments used fall into the types of transactions approved by the ScottishPower Board and are properly validated
within the appropriate levels of authority. Transactions included instruments such as physically settled instruments, financially-settled instruments,
other contractual obligations, regulatory requirements and other obligations. The types of instruments which can be used are approved for each
business. Subject to the limit requirements discussed above, no transaction was executed unless it was an approved instrument. Authorised personnel
were permitted to engage only in those activities specified in the business operational policies and procedures.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required in respect of items where the choice of specific policy to be followed
could materially affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the group should it later be determined that a different
choice would be more appropriate. Such a policy is discussed at (a) below. In addition, in preparing the consolidated Accounts in conformity with IFRS,
the company is required to make estimates and assumptions that impact on the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the
group. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These are discussed at (b) to (h) below. These critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty should be read in conjunction with the full statement of Accounting Policies at Note 3.

(a) EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES
In accordance with the group accounting policy purchased emissions allowances are recognised at cost within inventories. The group recognises
liabilities in respect of its obligations to deliver emissions allowances. Any liabilities recognised are measured based on the value at which these
allowances were initially recognised on the balance sheet. If it is estimated that it will be necessary to deliver more emission allowances than recorded
on the balance sheet the liability to this shortfall is calculated based on the market price of the allowances at the balance sheet date.

(b) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
IAS 39 requires certain financial instruments, in particular derivatives, to be recorded as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. The group’s valuation
strategy for these financial instruments is to utilise, as far as possible, quoted prices in an active trading market. In the absence of quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities, it is sometimes necessary to apply valuation techniques where contracts are marked to approved models. Models
are used for developing both the forward curves and the valuation metrics of the instruments themselves where the instruments are complex
combinations of standard or non-standard products. All models are subject to rigorous testing prior to being approved for valuation and subsequent
continuous testing and approval procedures designed to ensure the validity and accuracy of the model assumptions and inputs.
The assumptions within the models used to value financial instruments are critical, since any changes in assumptions could have a significant impact on
the fair values and movements which are reflected in the group income statement, group statement of comprehensive income and group balance sheet.
There is little formal guidance to assist in applying IAS 39 to the group’s energy management activities. As a result, significant judgements must be made
in applying IAS 39 to the group’s energy contracts in particular. Disclosures relating to the group’s VaR measures and derivative financial instruments are
set out in Notes 4 and 21 respectively.
At 31 December 2014, the carrying value of derivative financial assets was £160.0 million (2013 £135.3 million) and the carrying value of derivative
financial liabilities was £242.5 million (2013 £125.9 million).

(c) REVENUE
The nature of the energy industry in the UK in which the group operates is such that the group’s revenue recognition is subject to a degree of
estimation. The assessment of energy sales to retail customers is based on meter readings, which are carried out on a systematic basis throughout the
year. Revenue from the sale of energy to retail customers and from wind farms is the value of units supplied during the year and includes an estimate
of the value of the units supplied to customers between the date of their last meter reading and the period end based on external data supplied by the
electricity and gas market settlement process. At the end of each accounting period, amounts of energy delivered to customers since the last billing
date are estimated and the corresponding unbilled revenue is estimated and recorded in revenue.
Billed revenue not yet received is included in trade receivables and unbilled revenue is included within accrued income in the consolidated balance
sheet. Billed and unbilled revenue relating to the group’s retail customers included within the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2014
amounted to £492.8 million (2013 £326.4 million).

(d) IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are stated net of allowance for impairment of doubtful debts. The group estimates its provision for impairment taking into account
future cash flows, based on prior experience, ageing analysis and an assessment of the current economic environment within which the group operates.
Such estimates involve a significant degree of judgement.
The provision for impairment of trade receivables at 31 December 2014 amounted to £88.1 million (2013 £42.2 million – as restated (see Note 2)) and
trade receivables and accrued income (net of the provision for impairment) amounted to £786.3 million (2013 £627.2 million) – as restated (see Note 2)).
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY continued
(e) IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
In certain circumstances, property, plant and equipment are required to be reviewed for impairment. When a review for impairment is conducted, the
recoverable amount is assessed by reference to the net present value of the expected future cash flows of the relevant Cash Generating Unit (“CGU”),
or disposal value if higher. The discount rate applied is based on the group’s weighted average cost of capital with appropriate adjustments for the risks
associated with the CGU. Estimates of cash flows involve a significant degree of judgement and are consistent with management’s plans and forecasts.
At 31 December 2014, the carrying value of property, plant and equipment amounted to £10,556.8 million (2013 £9,706.8 million – as restated (see
Note 2)).

(f) CONTINGENCIES
Appropriate recognition and disclosure of contingent liabilities is made regarding litigation, tax matters, and environmental issues, among others.
Accounting for contingencies requires significant judgement by management regarding the estimated probabilities and ranges of exposure to potential
loss. The evaluation of these contingencies is performed by various specialists inside and outside of the group.
The company’s assessment of the group’s exposure to contingencies could change as new developments occur or more information becomes available.
The outcome of the contingencies could vary significantly and could materially impact the group’s results and financial position. The company has used
its best judgement in applying IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ to these matters.

(g) RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The group operates a number of defined benefit schemes for its employees which are accounted for in accordance with IAS 19 (Revised) ‘Employee
Benefits’ (“IAS 19(R)”) using the immediate recognition approach.
The expense and balance sheet items relating to the group’s accounting for pension schemes under IAS 19(R) are based on actuarial valuations. Inherent
in these valuations are key assumptions, including discount rates, earnings increases, mortality and increases in pensions in payment. These actuarial
assumptions are reviewed annually in line with the requirements of IAS 19(R). The assumptions adopted are based on prior experience, market
conditions and the advice of plan actuaries.
At 31 December 2014, the liability in the balance sheet for retirement benefit obligations amounted to £308.4 million (2013 £332.7 million). Sensitivity
disclosures relating to the group’s retirement benefit obligations are set out in Note 18.

(h) DECOMMISSIONING AND ENVIRONMENTAL
The group periodically revises the estimates made concerning the costs to be incurred in the decommissioning of the group’s power plants (including
wind farms) and the obligation to remove asbestos from the power stations over the course of their operational lives. At 31 December 2014, the present
value of the aforementioned costs amounted to £181.7 million (2013 £137.0 million – as restated (see Note2)) .
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6 BUSINESS SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Operating segments and business divisions
The classification of the group’s operating segments for management purposes is based on a combination of factors, principally differences in products
and services and the regulatory environment in which each business operates.
During 2014, Iberdrola completed changes to the internal management and corporate governance structure of the global business, this structure is
replicated by ScottishPower. Following this change and a review of the financial and management information reviewed by the group’s Chief Operating
Decision Maker (“CODM”), the composition of the group’s reportable segments has changed. For management reporting purposes, the group is now
organised into three operating segments; Energy Networks, Energy Wholesale and Retail, and Renewables, as detailed in Note 1 to the Accounts. In
order to comply with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, the group reports its operating segments on this basis and the measure of profit used for the
purpose of reporting to the CODM is profit from operations as per the consolidated income statement. All revenue and profit from operations for the
reported segments arise from operations within Great Britain and Ireland. Prior year information has been restated accordingly.
In accordance with the disclosure requirements of IFRS, the Annual Report and Accounts of SPUK reports the relevant financial results of the operating
segments as described above. In the interest of improved transparency the group has voluntarily disclosed revenue and profit from operations for the
separate business divisions within the Energy Wholesale and Retail and Renewables operating segments, whilst also providing detail in relation to
non-recurring items and certain re-measurements arising from IAS 39, consistent with the Supply and Generation regulatory licence conditions. This
information has been calculated, where appropriate, in accordance with Standard Licence Condition 16B of the Electricity Generation Licence and
Standard Condition 19A of the Electricity and Gas Supply Licences.
The group’s operating segments, business functions and business divisions are as follows:
Operating segment

Business function

Energy Wholesale

Energy Retail

Renewables

Business division description

Energy Networks

Energy Networks
Energy Wholesale
and Retail

Business division

Generation – Licensed business

The transmission and distribution business within the group.
1

The licensed activity of the Energy Wholesale business function,
which owns and operates coal, gas and hydro-electric generation plant.

Energy Management 1

The non-licensed activities of the Energy Wholesale business
function, responsible for wholesale market sales and purchases for
the Generation and Supply licensed business divisions.

Other

The other non-licensed activity of the Energy Wholesale business
function which includes the results of the group’s waste water
treatment facility.

Supply – Licensed business 1

The licensed activity of the Energy Retail business function
responsible for the supply of electricity and gas to domestic and
business customers.

Other

The non-licensed activity of the Energy Retail business function
which includes the group’s Energy Services activities.

Renewables – Licensed business 1

The Great Britain licensed activity of the Renewables operating
segment, which develops and operates renewable generation
plant, other than hydro-electric generation plant.

Other

The non-licensed activity of the Renewables operating segment,
which includes generation activity outside Great Britain and the
impact of the amortisation of the fair value attributed to the
Renewables operating segment when purchased by Iberdrola
during 2007.

1
The Generation – Licensed, Supply – Licensed, Renewables – Licensed and the Energy Management businesses are consistent with those disclosed in the Consolidated
Segmental Statements for the Supply and Generation licensed businesses presented in accordance with Standard Licence Condition 16B of the Electricity Generation Licence
and Standard Condition 19A of the Electricity and Gas Supply Licences. These statements can be found at www.scottishpower.com/pages/company_reporting.asp.
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued
(b) Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill in respect of the Renewables business detailed and Rye House power station is detailed at (i) and (ii) below respectively.
(i) Renewables
The carrying amount of goodwill for the Renewables business at 31 December 2014 was £364.6 million (2013£364.6 million).
The recoverable amount for the Renewables business has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections which reflect past experience and which are based upon a management approved business plan ending in 2022. Cash flows beyond that
period reflect asset estimated useful lives as well as management’s forward view of prices and the business strategic objectives. It is considered
appropriate to assess the cash flows over a period longer than five years as this better reflects the long term nature of energy market operations and
governance and of wind farm development lead times.
The value-in-use calculation is based on anticipated generation output over the expected lives of individual wind farm projects.
Cash inflows for all projects are based on anticipated generation output based on wind studies and past experience. The output is valued at forward
power prices based on: observable market information where available; assumed continuing government support through ROCs and other mechanisms;
and on internal model assumptions.
Cash outflows are based on planned operating and capital expenditure.
The value-in-use calculation of the Renewables business exceeds the carrying value. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the value-in-use calculation is based would not cause a change to this conclusion. The expected forward price of power and
discount rates applied are the key assumptions to which the value-in-use calculation is most sensitive. The value-in-use still exceeds the carrying value
with any reasonably possible reduction of the forward price of power or increase of discount rate.
Main assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

Basis for determining values assigned to key assumptions

Discount rate (pre-tax) Onshore 6.11%, Offshore 7.11%

Discount rate is determined on the basis of market data and the divisional cost of capital

Forward price of power

Market quotes/management future expectations

(ii) Rye House
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the group recognised an impairment charge of £82.1 million, within the ‘Depreciation and amortisation
charge, allowances and provisions’ line of the income statement in relation to the goodwill of Rye House power station, which brought the value of
goodwill in relation to Rye House to £nil. Rye House belongs to the Energy Wholesale and Retail operating segment.
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